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4 Becket Street 

This house was built as a double house for Benjamin Phippen, Salem fisherman, 
in 1718. 

Late in the 17th century this lot was part of the land of Habakkuk Turner of 
Salem, whose widow Mary married deacon John Marston, a Salem house 
carpenter, in 1686. The Marstons eventually sold off this land, which had been 
orchard, as houselots, and on 22 Jan 1717 for 25 li they granted to Deacon 
Marston's son-in-law Benjamin Phippen, Salem fisherman, "a certain parcel 
of land" containing about 1/4 acre, bounded east 5 poles 2 1 (84. 5 1) "at ye front 
against ye lane or highway" (now Becket St.); west 5 poles 2' on land formerly 
of William West; south on land of Samuel Phippen; and north on land of Bray, 
formerly of Coombs (33:74). It was too late in the year to build in 1717, so 
this house was probably built in 1718 (perhaps by housewright father-in-law 
John Marston); it was certainly here by 8 Dec 1719 when, for 72 li, fisherman 
Benjamin Phippen mortgaged to Capt William Bowditch, merchant, "all that 
my homestead, consisting of a new dwelling house and about 1/4 acre of land;" 
this mortgage was dis charged on 26 Mar 17 22 (36: 190). 

Benjamin Phippen (1688-1725?) was the son of a pump-maker and fisherman, 
Joseph Phippen, who had fled to Salem during the Indian uprising at his home 
in Maine. Benjamin was always referred to as a fisherman in the old records; 
he was undoubtedly master of a fishing vessel, and was referred to as "skipper" 
Phippen (only masters of merchant vessels were called "captain"). He was 
evidently quite successful at his calling, for he made a good marriage, and 
this double house was very fine and large for its time. He evidently died about 
1725, for his widow remarried in 1726; perhaps he was lost at sea. Admini­
stration on his estate was not granted until 1738, the year in which his eldest 
son came of age. 

On 6 Nov 1738 son Benjamin, a cordwainer (shoemaker) was appointed admini­
strator of his father's estate; the inventory reveals that this "double house with 
about 40 poles of land" was valued at 220 li, and that his "pew in the gallery of 
the meeting house in the East Parish in Salem" was worth 10 li (#21743). A 
double house was a house built for two-family occupancy. 

On 2 Jan 1738 for 228 li the house and land were sold to Thomas Lisbrill, Salem 
mariner, with Benjamin's widow Ruth (now Mrs Henry West) releasing her 
dower right therein on 22 Mar 1738 foi.- 5 shillings (77:253). Thomas Lisbrill 
(also, LeSbriel) owned the place for six years; on 28 July 1744, when he was 
resident at the Isle of Jersey in the English Channel, for 100 li he sold the 
Salem house and garden to John Balcam of the Isle of Jersey (formerly of 
Mansfield, Connecticut), (87: 20; this deed, written on Jersey, is in French). 
Three years later, on 22 Ap 1747, John Balcam, having returned to Mansfield, 
for 550 li granted the "mansion house" and land in Salem's "Lower Society" 
(East Parish) to Salem brothers, mariners Peter and James Murray (88:278). 
The house and land wou!d remain in possession of their descendants for more 
than a century. 



Peter Murray owned the eastern half of the estate, and brother James the 
western half. In 1745 Peter had married Hannah Slate; in 1746 they had a son 
Peter, who became a cooper (barrel-maker). After the death of Peter Sr and 
then his widow Hannah (who died of palsy on 28 Dec 1796, aged about 73 years), 
Peter Jr, the cooper, inherited the eastern half. He had married Margaret 
Webb of Salem in 1771; she died of consumption (tuberculosis) on 19 July 1795, 
leaving her husband Peter and daughter Mary ("Polly"), who'd been born in 
1779. Peter the cooper died of consumption at the age of 61 years on 13 Feb 
1807, leaving his daughter Polly, by then the wife of Israel Ward, a hairdresser 
whom she'd married in 1803. Peter's half of the premises was valued at $1500, 
his personal estate (including such items as his "cooper's old tools," two break­
fast tables, a walnut case of drawers, old pewter, & a small brass kett).e) at 
$116.13 (#19114). 

Meanwhile, in the western half: James Murray, mariner, had married Eliza­
beth Foot of Salem on 14 May 1746; they had a daughter, Elizabeth, who married 
John Fairfield in 1767. After the deaths of her parents, she inherited the western 
half. Many years later, when a widow, Mrs Fairfield, on 28 Aug 1815, for $1030 
granted to one of her sons, James Murray Fairfield, mariner, the westerly 
half of the house and land (208:139). It remained in his possession for many years. 
After his death, this half (which had long been mortgaged) was sold to his sons, 
James and Samuel G Fairfield, for $775 in May 1845 (358:29; also mortgage 215:160). 

Over in the eastern half: in the spring of 1814 Mrs Polly (Murray) Ward, the 
owner, was dying; on 3 Mar 1814 via straw Jonathan Archer she granted her 
half to her husband Israel Ward (203:24,25). Three weeks later, 24 Mar 1814, 

·aged 35 years, she died. Her husband Israel eventually (in 1831) married again, 
to Sarah Gerrish; he died 4 June 1849, aged 70 years, and was survived by his 
second wife Sarah and his eldest son Israel; the eastern half was then valued at 
$625, and he also owned a garden plot on Carlton Street and the house & land 
where his son lived in Lynn (#56302). On 24 June 1864 Israel's widow Sarah, 
then of Hamilton, Mass., granted her right in the Salem premises, in considera­
tion of "friendly feelings," to her step-son, cordwainer Israel Ward of Lynn; 
the other half was then occupied by Samuel G Fairfield (855: 281). Soon after, on 
27 July 1864, Israel Ward of Lynn for $200 sold the eastern half to James Fair­
field of Salem (673:197). On 26 Aug 1864 for $200 James g'ranted the eastern 
half to his younger brother Samuel G Fairfield (673:198). This evidently gave 
Samuel full ownership of the house at 4 Becket Street. 

Samuel G Fairfield died possessed of the house &. land on 3 Sept 1889, having 
willed it to his wife Jane S; he left a son William M and a daughter Lucy S, wife 
of William A Rust (#68269). Mrs Fairfield owned the estate until 22Nov 1902, 
when she sold it to her daughter Mrs Rust (1690:528). Mrs Rust owned it nearly 
twenty years; on 14 June 1921, a widow, she sold the house & land to Joseph 
U LeMay of Salem (2484:554). The house had been in possession of the Murray 
brothers and their direct descendants since 1747--a period of 174 years. 



On 1 Feb 1924 Joseph U LeMay granted the premises to Joseph Polansky and 
his siter Mrs Frieda Kaplan of Salem, and the same day they mortgaged it to 
the Salem Savings Bank (2587:440, 441). After 22 years this mortgage was 
foreclosed ( 1 Jan 1946) and on 1 Ap 1946 the Bank granted the house and land 
to Peter A Tzortzes of Salem (3457:66). On 10 Nov 1950 Mr Tzortzes granted 
the 4 Becket Street 'estate to Veronica Graboski and Wladyslaw Dobrosielski 
of Salem (3783:572). 

On 12 July 1951 Graboski & Dobrosielski granted the Benjamin Phippen house 
to Peter N Drillis and his wife Harriet D Drillis, of Salem (3830:576). 

Notes: 

Robert Booth 
17 Jan 1978 

This house has post-and-beam construction characteristic of the period; 
all the formerly exposed timbers were long ago covered up by box-mouldings 
with beaded trim- -all except that part of the girt directly over the inside door­
frame of the door to Becket Street, which part of the girt is uncovered and 
therefore reveals its chamfering. Over the years additions were made to the 
wsstern part of the original house, and a small lean-to added to the back or 
·northerly part of the eastern half of the house, accounting for the present 
roofline there. The eastern cellar beam is one of the largest sticks in Salem. 
The western (kitchen) summer beam has cracked. The original central chimney 
is long-gone. 

Mrs Drillis, present owner, was told by a Mr McDonald (?), now dead, of 
Marblehead, that he had moved this house to its present location from old 
Elm or Walnut Streets before they were turned into Hawthorne Boulevard. 
This never happened: photographs show that there never was a house like this 
(with side door a. .. 1d slightly elongated pitch roof) on those streets; the Hopkins 
Salem atlas of 187 4 clearly shows the outline of a house that could only be 
this one, at 4 Becket Street; and measurements given in early deeds correspond 
to measurements of the present house in its present location. This house has 
never been moved, and is probably the oldest still standing on Becket Street. 



PHIPPEN 

I. Benjamin, fisherman (b. 29 Sept 1688, son of Joseph & Damaris (widow of 
Thomas Searle) Phippen of Salem}, m. l Nov 1715 Ruth Marston (bp 14 Mar 1697, 
dtr of deacon John & Mary (Gardner) (widow of Habakkuk Turner) Marston of 
Salem; he probably died in 1725 or 1726; she m(2) 22 Dec 1726 Henry West of 
Salem. Known children of Benjamin and Ruth: 

1) Benjamin, bp 28 Ap 1717, cordwainer, m. 5 July 1739 Hannah Becket; had 
a dtr Mary, bp 6 July 1743. 

2) Elizabeth, bp 7 Sept 1718 
3) Ruth, 1719, d. unm'd 10 Dec 1785. 

MURRAY (and descendants} 

A. Peter, mariner, m. 29 Oct 1745 Hannah Slate (she died, his widow, 28 Dec 
1796, of palsy, agedabt73years}. Issue: 

l} Peter, 1746, cooper, m. 7 May 1771 Margaret Webb of Salem (1751-95}; 
shed. 19 July 1795, a.44y, of consumption; he d. 13 Feb 1807, a. 6ly, 
of consuption. Issue: 

a} Mary ("Polly"}, 1779, m. 9 Jan 1803 Israel Ward; she d. 24 Mar 1814; 
hem. (2) 7 Aug 1831 Sa~ah Gerrish; he d. 4 June 1849, a, 73y. 
Issue of Israel & Polly, surnamed Ward: 

1) Israel, 3 Oct 1803, married, of Lynn in 1864. 
2'} Peter Murray, 15 June 1805, d. at sea 4 Aug 1824. 
3} Jonathan, 20 June 1808, d. 8 May 1809. 
4) Jonathan, 2 Jan 1814, d. 21 Oct 1814. 

B. James, mariner, m. 14 May 1746 Elizabeth Foot of Salem. 
1) Elizabeth, 1747?, m. 28 Mar 1767 John Fairfield; they had at least: 

a) James Murray, 16 Jan 1777, mariner, m. 24 Dec 1809 Deborah Goodridge 
of Beverly; they had atleast this issue; surnarr,ed Fairfi'efd: 

1) James, 11 Aug 1806, m. 3 Mar 1828 Mary Ann Archer. 
2) Samuel Goodridge, 19 Feb 182_, m. 29 Ap 1849 Jane S Hill; issue 

a) William M, of Lynn in 1889. 
b) Lucy S, m. William A Rust . 
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